2001

Walter G. Henderson v. Harry R. Meyer : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a judgment on a jury verdict in the Second Judicial District Court in and for Davis County, the Honorable Thornley K. Swan, District Judge. The verdict returned and judgment thereon found no cause of action by plaintiffs against either defendant.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The matter came on regularly for jury trial before the Honorable Thornley K. Swan, District Judge, on March 21, 1974. Upon hearing, the jury returned a

verdict of no cause of action against either defendant, and judgment was duly entered by the trial court accordingly. Subsequently, plaintiffs, by and through counsel, filed a Motion for Judgment N. O. V. or in the Alternative for a New Trial. Said Motion was denied by the trial court after hearing on April 30, 1974. On May 30, 1974, plaintiffs filed Notice of Appeal in this action, and the case is now before this Honorable Court pursuant to that Notice of Appeal.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek reversal of the lower court's Verdict and Judgment.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was brought to recover for personal injuries and property damage sustained by plaintiffs-appellants in a two-car accident which occurred on April 22, 1972, on Second West Street between Fourth and Fifth South Streets in Bountiful, Utah. The accident occurred when a northbound pickup truck, operated by defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer and owned by defendant Harry R. Meyer, collided with the rear-end of a northbound vehicle operated by plaintiff Helen L. Henderson and owned by plaintiff Walter G. Henderson.

At trial, substantial credible and uncontroverted evidence was adduced by plaintiffs, including testimony and admissions from defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer, requiring the clear conclusion that the above-described

accident directly and proximately resulted from the negligence of defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer (Tr. 52-60). Such evidence was not rebutted by defendant.

At the conclusion of presentation of evidence in this case, plaintiffs moved the trial court for a directed verdict in favor of plaintiffs and against defendants by submission of plaintiffs' Requested Jury Instruction No. 1, which instruction was not given by the court. (The full text of this proposed instruction is reproduced under Point I of the Argument portion of this Brief.) Plaintiffs duly excepted to the failure of the trial court to grant such Motion and provide such Instruction.

Subsequent to the giving of the court's instructions, the jury retired for deliberation and later returned a verdict of no cause of action, and judgment thereon was duly entered.

Subsequent to entry of judgment, plaintiffs moved the trial court, pursuant to the provisions of Rules 50(b) and 59(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, for a judgment n. o. v. or in the alternative for a new trial. The trial court by order denied such motion after hearing on April 30, 1974. On May 30, 1974, plaintiffs filed Notice of Appeal in this action, and the case is now before this Honorable Court pursuant to that Notice of Appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO GRANT PLAINTIFFS' MOTION

FOR DIRECTED VERDICT AND PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR JUDGMENT NOTWITHSTANDING THE VERDICT, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE FOR A NEW TRIAL.

At the conclusion of evidence in the instant case, plaintiffs moved the trial court for a directed verdict in favor of plaintiffs and against defendants by and through the submission of plaintiffs' Requested Jury Instruction No. 1. Said instruction provided: "You are instructed to return a verdict in favor of plaintiff Helen L. Henderson and against the defendants on the issue of liability."

The trial court did *not* give plaintiffs' Requested Instruction No. 1, assigning no reason for its refusal. Upon the return of the jury verdict of no cause of action herein, plaintiffs again moved the trial court, pursuant to the provisions of Rule 59(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, for a judgment n. o. v. or in the alternative a new trial. The trial court denied such motion upon hearing thereof on April 30, 1974.

It is clear, under the facts of this case, that the refusal by the trial court to give such instruction and to grant plaintiffs' Motion for a Directed Verdict and to grant plaintiffs' Motion for Judgment N. O. V., or in the Alternative for a New Trial, constituted clear error, and that the error is of such magnitude as to require a reversal and remand of this case to the trial court for a new trial or other appropriate action.

It is well established as a matter of law that a Mo-

tion for a Directed Verdict and a Motion for Judgment N. O. V. properly lie and should be granted by the trial court in a case where there are no controverted issues of fact upon which reasonable men could differ, and where, without weighing the credibility of the witnesses, there can be but one reasonable conclusion as to the verdict. *Brady v. Southern Railroad*, 320 U. S. 476, 64 S. Ct. 232, 88 L. Ed. 329 (1943); *Shafer v. Mountain States Tel. & Telegraph Co.*, 335 F. 2d 444 (9th Cir. 1964); *Ozark Air Lines, Inc. v. Larimer*, 352 F. 2d 9 (8th Cir. 1965); *Patterson v. Pizitz, Inc.*, 353 F. 2d 267 (5th Cir. 1965); *Jopek v. New Court Central Railroad*, 353 F. 2d 778 (3rd Cir. 1965); *Herron v. Maryland Gas Co.*, 3457 F. 2d 357 (5th Cir. 1965); *Adams v. Powell*, 351 F. 2d 213 (10th Cir. 1965); *Pinehurst, Inc. v. Schlamowitz*, 351 F. 2d 509 (4th Cir. 1965); 5A Moore's Federal Practice, § 50.02(1) et seq. See also, *Pence v. United States*, 316 U. S. 332, 62 S. Ct. 1080, 86 L. Ed. 1510 (1942) and *Pollesche v. TransAmerican Ins. Co.*, 27 Utah 2d 430, 497 P. 2d 236 (1972).

In the leading case of *Brady v. Southern Railroad*, *supra*, the United States Supreme Court had before it the question of when and under what circumstances a Motion for a Directed Verdict is properly granted. In that landmark case, the Supreme Court announced the standard in the following terms:

When the evidence is such that without weighing the credibility of the witnesses there can be but one reasonable conclusion as to the

verdict, the court should determine the proceedings by non-suit, directed verdict or otherwise in accordance with the applicable practice without submission to the jury, or by judgment notwithstanding the verdict. By such direction of the trial the result is saved from mischance of speculation over legally unfounded claims (320 U. S. at 479-480).

5A Moore's Federal Practice, § 50.02(1) states the above rule in somewhat more succinct fashion:

Although the language of the opinions concerning directed verdicts is extremely varied, it is now clear that a verdict will normally be directed where both the facts and the inferences to be drawn from the facts point so strongly in favor of one party that the court believes that reasonable men could not come to a different conclusion (At p. 2320).

It is now well established, in applying the above rule, that an appellate court, in reviewing the action of a lower court on a Motion for a Directed Verdict, must consider the evidence in its strongest light in favor of the party against whom the Motion for Directed Verdict was made, and give him the advantage of every fair and reasonable intendment that the evidence can justify. Upon such a consideration, if the appellate court concludes that the facts adduced in evidence and the inferences to be drawn from the facts point to any conclusion so strongly that the court concludes that reasonable men could not come to a different conclusion, the appellate court is justified in overturning any ruling by the trial

court on a Motion for a Directed Verdict which is adverse to or *contra* that required conclusion. *Continental Ore Co. v. Union Carbide Corp.*, 370 U. S. 690, 82 S. Ct. 1404, 8 L. Ed. 2d 777 (1962); *Webb v. Illinois Central Railroad*, 352 U. S. 512, 77 S. Ct. 451, 1 L. Ed. 503 (1957); *Girardi v. Gates Rubber Co.*, 325 F. 2d 196 (9th Cir. (1963)); *Schnee v. Southern Pacific Railroad*, 186 F. 2d 745 (9th Cir. 1951); *Austad v. Austad*, 2 Utah 2d 49, 269 P. 2d 284.

Applying the above cases and authority to the case at bar, it is clear that the trial court erred in refusing to grant plaintiffs' Motion for a Directed Verdict and plaintiffs' Motion for Judgment N. O. V. In this case, the facts adduced at trial and the inferences appropriately drawn from those facts, point so strongly in favor of the plaintiffs that it is inconceivable that reasonable men, in considering those facts, could conclude other than that plaintiffs were entitled to a verdict and judgment against defendants.

In the instant case, the undisputed facts disclosed at trial reveal that the accident which is the subject matter of this lawsuit occurred on Second West Street between Fourth and Fifth South Streets in Bountiful, Utah, when a northbound pickup truck, operated by defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer and owned by defendant Harry R. Meyer, collided with the rear-end of a northbound vehicle operated by plaintiff Helen R. Henderson and owned by plaintiff Walter G. Henderson. Upon trial, the defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer made what is tan-

tamount to a clear admission of liability and culpability in the events surrounding the accident. Upon the witness stand he testified that immediately prior to the accident and while proceeding northward on Second West Street he observed a vehicle approaching the roadway on which he was proceeding. He testified that he observed such vehicle up to and until he reached its location, thinking that it was going to pull out onto Second West Street where he was proceeding. After passing such vehicle he testified that he turned his head and looked out the rear window of his truck for some time prior to his collision with plaintiffs' vehicle.

FROM THE TESTIMONY OF RONALD EUGENE MEYER:

Q. Do you recall stating to the investigating officer in the presence of Mrs. Henderson in the officer's car that you speeded up when it appeared to you that this white car was perhaps coming onto the roadway?

A. No. I don't recall that.

Q. Do you believe that you did make such a statement?

A. No.

Q. And you don't have a present recollection of having speeded up?

A. I am sure that I didn't.

Q. All right. As you passed the driveway, did you make any observation to the side or to the rear of this stopped white Rambler?

A. Yes. I looked over my shoulder after out the rear window.

Q. All right. This is the rear window of the pickup?

A. Yes.

Q. Pickup truck?

A. Yes.

Q. And the rear window is right behind your shoulder in the pickup truck?

A. Just like that (indicating).

Q. Did you turn your head to do that?

A. Yes.

Q. Of course, during that time you were unable to observe forward on Second West then to the north of your position. Do you have a recollection how long a period of time you spent with your head turned looking at this stopped Rambler?

A. Oh, it was a time, just a few seconds I guess.

Q. Do you think maybe three seconds, four seconds?

A. Oh, I wouldn't know.

Q. Give us your best recollection of the number of seconds.

A. It was just mainly as I passed him.

Q. Was there any reason to look at him in view of the fact that you knew that he was stopped and no danger to you as you passed?

A. Just to see what — I don't know.

Q. You were curious?

A. I guess.

Q. Did you recognize him or the driver of this car?

A. No.

Q. All right. Let's take it from the time that your head is turned looking out the back window at this white Rambler, tell us in your own words what happened from that point up to the time of the impact?

A. Well, when I looked around I seen the car stopped, so I just applied my brakes and turned the wheel to the one side.

Q. All right. Now, how far were you from the Henderson vehicle when you first observed it?

A. I couldn't say for sure.

Q. Obviously not far enough to stop?

A. Well, yes.

Q. And you made no observation of it previous to that time?

A. No.

Q. Did you at that time observe the turn signal or brake lights on that vehicle?

A. Well, no. I was too busy stopping. I didn't — I couldn't see.

Q. Were you able to change the direction of your truck at all before the impact?

A. No. It just slid kind of sideways.

Q. Did the Henderson vehicle appear to be stopped when you first observed it?

A. Yes.

Q. What did it appear that it was doing or attempting to do?

A. Just as I can recall, it appeared like it was just coming to a stop. The back bumper of it was just a little high.

Q. You are not sure whether it was actually stopped or stopping?

A. I couldn't say.

Q. All right. Did you have any conversation with Mrs. Henderson after this impact occurred?

A. Well, I got out and went and asked her if she was all right, and if the girl was all right, and she said after a while, "I think I'm all right," but she was rubbing her neck.

Q. Did you hear her complain of any pain in her neck, back or head at the scene of the accident?

A. She complained of headache in the patrol car.

Q. Are you personally familiar at all with the progress of her injuries since the date of the accident and until the present time, do you have any personal knowledge how she's coming along?

A. Just what I heard from the lawyers.

From the above, it should be abundantly clear that

defendant Ronald Eugene Meyer's negligence was clearly established as a matter of fact and law merely from his own testimony and admissions. Moreover, when the other evidence in the case is considered, there is such a mass of credible and uncontroverted evidence that no other reasonable conclusion is possible. Certainly no appreciable or legally-sufficient evidence was adduced requiring the conclusion that plaintiff Helen L. Henderson was sufficiently negligent or contributorily negligent to justify the verdict returned by the jury in this matter and the subsequent judgment entered thereon by the trial court, or that any other appreciable legal defense for said defendant's actions exists. Thus, the trial court committed clear error in denying plaintiffs' Motion for a Directed Verdict and thereby permitting this case to go to the jury on the liability issue. Further, the trial court committed clear error, for substantially the same reason, is denying plaintiffs' Motion for Judgment N. O. V., or in the Alternative for a New Trial. This Court should reverse the judgment of the trial court and remand the case for appropriate proceedings.

POINT II.

THE FACTUAL DETERMINATIONS MADE BY THE JURY IN THIS CASE WERE AGAINST THE WEIGHT AND PREPONDERANCE OF THE EVIDENCE AND CLEARLY ERRONEOUS.

Even assuming, *arguendo* that the trial court did not

err in refusing to grant plaintiffs' Motion for a Directed Verdict and plaintiffs' Motion for Judgment N. O. V., it is clear that the factual determinations made by the jury in the instant case were clearly and manifestly erroneous and inconsistent with the weight of evidence adduced at trial. As a result, this Court should reverse the judgment of the trial court and remand this case for a new trial or other appropriate proceedings.

It is clear that an appellate court, in considering and reviewing the correctness and propriety of a ruling by a lower court on a Motion for a Directed Verdict and Motion for Judgment N. O. V. is required to view the evidence in the light most favorable to the party against whom the Motion was made. An appellate court also possesses, however, power to review the evidence generally to determine whether there in any substantial evidence supportive of the verdict of the trier of fact or whether the determinations made by the trier of fact are so manifestly against the weight and preponderance of the evidence adduced at trial as to require reversal. See cases cited *supra*. See also, *Consolidated Edison Co. v. NLRB*, 305 U. S. 197, 59 S. Ct. 266, 83 L. Ed. 126 (1938); *Riggs v. U. S.*, 280 F. 2d 949 (5th Cir. 1960); *Terminal Railroad Assoc. v. Fitzjohn*, 165 F. 2d 473 (8th Cir. 1948).

In the instant case, even the most cursory review of the evidence adduced at trial discloses that the verdict of the jury was manifestly against the weight and preponderance of the evidence. (See the discussion of

the evidence provided in Point I of the Argument portion of this Brief.) The verdict of the jury in this case so flies in the face of all the evidence adduced and is so plainly inexplicable and unjustifiable that it should astound even the most experienced judge. Appellants can only conclude that the verdict was a product of passion or prejudice against the plaintiffs. This Court should reverse the judgment of the trial court and remand this case to the trial court for appropriate proceedings.

CONCLUSION

The trial court erred in refusing to grant plaintiffs-appellants' Motion for a Directed Verdict and plaintiffs-appellants' Motion for Judgment N. O. V., or in the Alternative for a New Trial. Moreover, the verdict of the jury in the instant case was against the weight and preponderance of the evidence and clearly erroneous. This Court should reverse the judgment of the trial court and remand this case to the district court for appropriate proceedings.