2001

Walter G. Henderson v. Harry R. Meyer : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

is final excepting only where the evidence is so clear that all reasonable minds would find one way and so that a verdict contrary thereto must have resulted from passion or prejudice, or misconception of the law or the evidence, or in arbitrary disregard thereof. *Lemmon v. Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company*, 9 Utah 2d 195, 341 P.2d 215.

As is frequently the situation on appeals of this kind, the party against whom the jury found seeks to have this Court substitute its judgment on the facts for the judgment of the jury. Therefore, and rather than stating the facts in the light most favorable to the defendants, the plaintiffs in their Brief have often stated facts in the light most favorable to them. The following is believed to be a fair statement of the material facts in this case bearing on the disputed issues of liability and in the light most favorable to the defendants. All of the facts hereafter stated are from the trial testimony of Ronald Meyer (Tr. pp 52-60) and except as otherwise indicated by a reference to another portion of the Transcript.

The plaintiff, Helen L. Henderson, brought this action for damages for her personal injuries. The 1964 Mercury automobile which she was driving at the time was registered in her husband's name, Walter G. Henderson, he being the other plaintiff. He was not in the vehicle at the time of the accident, and his sole claim in this lawsuit was for a small amount of property damage to the vehicle.

The accident in question occurred about noon on Saturday, April 22, 1972, and it was a two vehicle accident with the left front of the Meyer vehicle colliding with the right rear of the Henderson vehicle (Tr. p 44). Prior to the collision, both vehicles had been northbound on 200 West in Bountiful, Utah. That street has one lane each way for north and southbound traffic. The accident occurred in the block on 200 West between 400 South Street to the south of where the accident occurred and 300 South to the north. Both Fourth and Third South are streets traveling east and west and which intersect at right angles to 200 West. Although not precisely stated in the record, it appears that the point of the collision occurred in the northbound lane on 200 West and approximately mid-way between Fourth and Third South Streets.

To the west from the point of collision was a Norge Town Cleaners into which Mrs. Henderson was intending to turn left (Tr. 71). She claimed that she had come up and had been stopped waiting for southbound traffic to go by before proceeding to make her left turn (Tr. 71). Ronald Meyer testified that he thought Mrs. Henderson was stopped when he first saw her, although he also testified that he thought she had just stopped since her rear bumper was still high.

Mr. Meyer testified that as he was proceeding north on 200 West and just as he came through its intersection with Fourth South that he first saw a white Rambler station wagon to his right which was exiting from a drive-in parking lot on to 200 West. At that time, Mr. Meyer's speed was about 30 miles per hour and the speed

limit on that street at that time was 35 miles per hour. When Mr. Meyer saw the Rambler it was traveling from east to west at right angles to him. He observed it while it traveled a distance of approximately 100 feet and its course was such that it was coming west toward where he would be passing it northbound on 200 West. Mr. Meyer testified that just before he got to where the Rambler was exiting on to Second West and from this driveway that he honked his horn at the Rambler. That car then entered 200 West and with its front door about over the gutter on the east side of the street. Mr. Meyer testified that he moved to his left to avoid this Rambler and "in case he [Rambler] did come out in the road after I [Meyer] honked my horn" (Tr. 57). However, the Rambler stopped. As Meyer passed in front of the Rambler, he looked to his right rear out the rear window of the pickup truck he was driving. Meyer didn't know how long he looked, but it was only as he passed. When he looked back to the road in front of him, the Henderson vehicle was too close for him to be able to stop without hitting it. Considering the position Mr. Meyer had observed her bumper in and indicating that she had just stopped, it may have been that Mrs. Henderson slowed and stopped her vehicle during the brief period Mr. Meyer's attention was diverted by the Rambler. Immediately upon seeing her, Meyer applied his brakes and swerved to his right. His travel speed had been approximately 30 miles per hour and the investigating officer estimated from Meyer's skid marks that the latter had reduced his speed to approximately 15 miles per hour at impact (Tr. p 51). The extremely minor damage to the

rear of the Henderson vehicle and as shown in the photograph of it admitted into evidence (defendant's Exhibit 1 in envelope attached to p. 24 of Rec.) may well have caused the jury to conclude that Meyer's speed was even less than 15 miles per hour upon impact.

It is clear from the testimony of Meyer that he was concerned as he was traveling north that the Rambler might enter the street and collide with him and as a consequence thereof, his attention to the road ahead of him was diverted away for a brief period. Moreover, and on this point, Mrs. Henderson herself testified that immediately after the accident that she had heard Mr. Meyer tell the investigating officer that "he [Meyer] thought the car [Rambler] was going to hit him" (Tr. 74).

Because of this claimed danger to Mr. Meyer from the Rambler, the Court included among its instructions to the jury the standard one on "Sudden Peril" that is No. 15.4 from JIFU. (Court's Instruction No. 21A Rec. p. 59). In essence, that instruction told the jury that if they believed that Mr. Meyer had been suddenly confronted with peril arising from either the actual presence or the appearance of imminent danger to himself that he was not required to use the same judgment and prudence as would have been required of him in the absence of that peril. No objection or exception was made or taken to the giving of this instruction to the jury and it is obvious that no legitimate objection could have been made since the evidence fairly presented an issue involving that instruction.

It is evident from the foregoing recitation of facts, and as applied to the law, particularly this "sudden peril" situation, that the issue of Mr. Meyer's negligence was one to be decided by the jury and that the trial court would have committed prejudicial error had it directed liability in favor of the plaintiffs and as against the defendants as a matter of law. The jury may well have concluded upon the evidence, and obviously did, that the danger posed to Mr. Meyer by this Rambler heading toward 200 West and on a collision course with Meyer's own vehicle was sufficient to excuse his inattention to the road ahead of him and for the brief period of time that he was inattentive. Moreover, the jury may well have concluded that the period of Meyer's inattention was indeed brief and that had his attention not been diverted away by the danger posed by the Rambler that the accident would not have occurred. The jury may well have believed that even with the peril from the Rambler that Meyer was able to slow his vehicle from the speed it had been traveling and by 15 miles per hour and perhaps more. He was also able to turn his vehicle to the right and so that only approximately one-half of his vehicle collided with approximately one-half of the rear of the other vehicle. On this evidence, the jury may well have concluded that had Meyer not been diverted by the Rambler for perhaps one or two seconds that he would have been able to have stopped or turned and so as to have completely avoided the accident in question. In other words, the jury on the Trial Court's instructions may have concluded that the accident resulted from the sudden peril of the Rambler rather than from any negligence on Mr. Meyer's part.

Considering all of the evidence and the inferences that may have been reasonably drawn therefrom by the jury, it is apparent that this was a case where the jury was justified in excusing Mr. Meyer's rear-ending of the Henderson vehicle and because of the "sudden peril" that the jury believed resulted from the presence of the Rambler. Although they do not involve the "sudden peril" doctrine, it is respectfully submitted that this Court has held that a jury question exists on an issue of liability in an automobile accident case and in at least two cases involving vehicular collisions where any issue of liability was more doubtful than it is in this instant case. *Fairbourn v. Lloyd*, 21 Utah 2d 62, 440 P.2d 257; *Gibbons v. Orem City Corp.*, 27 Utah 2d 184, 493 P.2d 1280.

In reviewing the record of this case relating to the issues of liability, the members of this Court may well conclude that had they sat on the jury that they would not have reached the verdict the jury did. Counsel for the defendants would be less than candid if he did not admit that the jury verdict came as a surprise to him and that a contrary verdict had been expected. It was apparent that counsel for the plaintiff was even more surprised in this regard and this expectation possibly explains his failure to even request of the Court prior to the submission of the case to the jury that the issues of liability be withdrawn from the jury and as will be discussed more fully under Point II hereafter. Nevertheless, the test is not what is expected or probable, but it is rather whether there was any competent evidence to support the verdict that was returned. In the instant case, a unanimous jury found, in effect, that

Ronald Meyer was not negligent. Obviously, the Trial Judge believed that the jury was within its prerogative in reaching that verdict or he would not have submitted the issues to them, nor would he have allowed the verdict to stand thereafter and in the face of the post-trial motions that were made by the attorney for the plaintiffs. On this subject matter of the proper function of the court and jury and under our judicial system, this Court had the following to say in the case of *Stickle v. Union Pacific Railroad Company*, 122 Utah 477, 251 P.2d 867, at 871:

“Courts, as final arbiters of law, could arrogate to themselves arbitrary and dangerous powers by presuming to determine questions of fact which litigants have a right to have passed upon by juries. Part of the merits of the jury system is its safeguarding against such arbitrary power in the courts. To the great credit of the courts of this country, they have been extremely reluctant to infringe upon this right, and by leaving it unimpaired have kept the administration of justice close to the people. Of course, the rights of litigants should not be surrendered to the arbitrary will of juries without regard to whether there is a violation of legal rights as a basis for recovery. The court does have a duty and a responsibility of supervisory control over the action of juries which is just as essential to the proper administration of justice as the function of the jury itself. Nevertheless, we remain cognizant of the vital importance of the privilege of trial by jury in our system of justice and deem it our duty to zealously protect and preserve it.”

POINT II

PLAINTIFFS FAILED TO MAKE ANY MOTION FOR A DIRECTED VERDICT AT THE CLOSE OF THE EVIDENCE AND THEY ARE NOW FORECLOSED THEREBY FROM CLAIMING THAT THE ISSUES OF LIABILITY SHOULD NOT HAVE BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE JURY.

Rule 50(a) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides that a party may move for a directed verdict in his favor and at the close of the evidence. That rule further provides that "a motion for a directed verdict shall state the specific ground[s] therefor." Rule 50(b) U.R.C.P. makes clear that a Motion for a Judgment N.O.V. is only appropriate where "a motion for a directed verdict made at the close of all the evidence is denied or for any reason is not granted" Rule 50(a) and (b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and upon which our Utah Rules of Civil Procedure were based, are identical and as they relate to the language of those rules at issue in the instant case.

As argued under Point I above, defendants contend that the evidence was ample to justify the Trial Court in submitting the issues of liability in this case to the jury. However, and even if this Court were to reject the defendants' argument under Point I above and were to hold as a matter of law that all reasonable minds must have concluded on the evidence that Ronald Meyer was negligent and that his negligence proximately caused the accident, still, the plaintiffs are now foreclosed to make that argument. This is so because the plaintiffs failed to properly request of the Trial Court and at the close of the evidence, a directed verdict in their favor and as against the defendants. Not having made that motion or

request anywhere in the record either orally or in writing, the plaintiffs cannot now complain that the issues of the defendants' liability were improperly submitted to the jury and because of insufficient evidence. Moreover, it is very clear from the law that will be hereafter cited that there is no basis under which the Court could have granted a Judgment N.O.V. and where a request or motion for a directed verdict was not made at the close of the evidence and prior to the time the jury retired to deliberate.

In order to have the complete record of all proceedings in the trial of this case before this Court on appeal, the defendants designated as record on this appeal not only the testimony of all witnesses at the trial, but also "the record of all discussions among counsel, among counsel and the Court, and every other portion of the record stenographically transcribed * * *" (Rec. 103). This was done to conclusively demonstrate to this Court that at no time upon the record did plaintiffs or their counsel in writing or orally request of the Trial Court that it direct a verdict in their favor and in the manner clearly required by Rule 50(b) U.R.C.P.

It is further true that plaintiff's attorney ^{during} ~~excepted to~~ the course of the trial (not "at the close of the evidence" as required by Rule 50) did submit his request that the jury be instructed as follows:

"You are instructed to return a verdict in favor of plaintiff, Helen L. Henderson, and against defendants on the issue of liability." (Rec. 26)

It is further true that plaintiffs' attorney excepted to the Trial Court's failure to give that instruction (without

stating any reasons for so excepting) and after the jury had retired to deliberate (Tr. 196). Of course, following the trial and within the time permitted by the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, the plaintiffs did move the Court for a Judgment N.O.V. or in the alternative for a new trial and it was then and only then that the plaintiffs ever contended that the issues of the defendants' liability should not have been submitted to the jury and on the grounds that all reasonable minds would have to have concluded that Ronald Meyer was guilty of negligence as a matter of law and that his negligence proximately caused the injuries and damages to the plaintiffs. In other words, the plaintiffs waited until about one week after the jury had reached their decision on liability before it was ever contended to the Trial Court that this issue of liability wasn't properly before the jury. As will appear from the cases referred to hereafter, it would be improper under these circumstances to allow the plaintiffs to now contend that the issues of liability were improperly submitted to the jury.

The only possible basis that the plaintiffs have for contending that they made a Motion for a Directed Verdict in the Trial Court would have to be predicated upon their requested Instruction No. 1 which is quoted above. It is interesting to note that the only request contained in that requested instruction relates to plaintiff, Helen L. Henderson, and no request is made for the other plaintiff, Walter G. Henderson. Although his claim is relatively minor and involves only a small amount of property damage, it is apparent that no possible basis exists for contending that any motion for a directed verdict was made in his favor and as against the defendants

and even if this Court were to hold that requested Instruction No. 1 qualifies as a Motion for a Directed Verdict under Rule 50 U.R.C.P.

It is also significant to note that not only did the plaintiffs in this case fail to properly request that the issues of the defendants' liability be taken from the jury, but they even submitted instructions to the Trial Court concerning their theories as to how the issues of Ronald Meyer's negligence should be presented to the jury. Plaintiff's requested Instruction No. 2 defines negligence and was given by the Court (Rec. 27). Plaintiffs' requested Instruction No. 5 is a detailed statement of the manner in which the plaintiffs believed Ronald Meyer to have been negligent and it was also given in substance by the Court (Rec. 29). It is submitted that these requested instructions compound the problem that exists by reason of the plaintiffs' failure to properly move for a directed verdict. That is, not only was no such motion made, but they then requested that the Trial Court give instructions on the very subject matter they are now contending should have been withdrawn from the jury. Under these circumstances, it is respectfully submitted that it would be a poor precedent indeed to charge the Trial Court with prejudicial error in having submitted the issue of negligence to the jury.

Counsel for defendants has not been able to find any Utah cases that have interpreted Rule 50 and on the point at issue. However, there are a number of Federal cases that have ruled upon this issue and which are believed to be squarely in point and considering that the

Utah and Federal rules are identical on this subject matter. Some of these cases are *Guglielmo v. Scotti & Sons, Inc.*, 58 F.R.D. 413 (1973); *Brandon v. Yale and Towne Manufacturing Company*, 220 F. Supp. 855 (1963), Affirmed per curiam at 342 F.2d 519 (1965); *Massaro v. United States Lines Company*, 307 F.2d 299, (1962); *Eisenberg v. Smith*, 263 F.2d 827 (1959), Cert. Denied 360 U.S. 918.

In *Guglielmo v. Scotti & Sons, Inc., Supra*, the Court held that Federal Rule 50(a) required a party to move for a directed verdict at the close of all the evidence in order to preserve its right to move for a judgment N.O.V. after the verdict. In that case, the fact that one of the parties chose not to move for a directed verdict at the close of all of the evidence foreclosed any consideration of its later request for a judgment N.O.V. Also, in that case, the party appealing had made some request for specific charges to the jury which it claimed had constituted a motion for a directed verdict. The Court held otherwise and found that the specificity requirement of Rule 50(a) had not been met.

In *Brandon v. Yale and Towne Manufacturing Company, Supra*, one of the parties had requested an instruction to the jury which was very similar to the plaintiffs' requested Instruction No. 1 in the instant case. The requested instruction from the *Brandon* case was as follows:

“Under all the evidence in this case, your verdict must be in favor of the defendant.”

The party who had requested that instruction in the *Brandon* case contended that this request constituted a motion for a directed verdict under Rule 50 F.R.C.P. The Court held otherwise and stated:

“Such a request is unspecific in its terms and does not meet the requirements of Rule 50(a)
* * *”

This same kind of situation was involved in the case of *Massaro v. United States Lines Company, Supra*. In the *Massaro* case, the Court had the following to say on this subject matter:

“United sought, as we have said, judgment n.o.v. against Northern Metal. But United made no motion for a directed verdict under Rule 50(a). We therefore do not have the question of the sufficiency of the evidence before us. [Citations omitted] A motion for a directed verdict is a prerequisite of a motion for judgment n.o.v. [Citations omitted]

“We cannot deem United’s request for charge No. 9 as affording it aid in its predicament. Request for charge No. 9 was as follows: ‘Under all of the evidence, your verdict in the third-party action must be in favor of the third-party plaintiff’. Such a request does not meet the requirements of Rule 50(a) for the request in its terms is unspecific and was made at the beginning of the trial. It was waived when it was not renewed at the close of the evidence.”

To the same effect is certain language from *Eisenberg v. Smith, Supra*, which is as follows:

“The Government next says that the plaintiffs are not entitled to consideration of their motion

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